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573695-W

Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors' report

Principal activities

Results

Group Company
RM'000 RM'000

Profit, net of tax, attributable to:
Owners of the parent 9,643 448
Non-controlling interests 136 -

9,779 448

Dividend

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of management
services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are manufacturing and sale of corrugated
boards and carton boxes.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal activities during the
financial year.

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other
than as disclosed in the financial statements.

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial
year.

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company
during the financial year were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a
material and unusual nature.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the current financial year.
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573695-W

Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors

Sai Chin Hock
See Wan Seng
Ang Kwee Teng
Siow Kee Yen
Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin
Tan Chin Hwee

Directors' benefits

Directors' interests

1.1.2014 Acquired Sold 31.12.2014

Direct interest
Sai Chin Hock 846,400 3,211,586 - 4,057,986
Ang Kwee Teng 10,000 - - 10,000
Siow Kee Yen 230,500 - (200,000) 30,500
Datuk Adillah binti Ahmad Nordin 34,000 - - 34,000

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any
arrangement to which the Company was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

The names of the directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the
date of this report are:

According to the register of directors' shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end
of the financial year in shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial
year were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of RM1 each

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to
receive a benefit (other than benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received
or due and receivable by the directors or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company
as shown in Note 14 to the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company
or a related corporation with any director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a
company in which he has a substantial financial interest except for those transactions mentioned
in Note 32 to the financial statements.
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors' interests (continued)

1.1.2014 Acquired Sold 31.12.2014

Indirect interest
Sai Chin Hock 22,305,798 - (3,211,586) 19,094,212
Ang Kwee Teng 18,634,888 - - 18,634,888
See Wan Seng 18,634,888 - - 18,634,888

Other statutory information

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(c)

Sai Chin Hock, Ang Kwee Teng and See Wan Seng, by virtue of their interests in shares in the
Company, are also deemed interested in shares in all the Company's subsidiaries to the extent
that the Company has an interest.

Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the
Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps:

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts
and the making of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known
bad debts had been written off and that adequate provision had been made for doubtful
debts; and

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in
the accounting records in the ordinary course of business had been written down to an
amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would
render:

the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial
extent; and

the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company misleading.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have
arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

Number of ordinary shares of RM1 each

Other than as disclosed above, none of the other director in office at the end of the financial year
had any interest in shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year.
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Other statutory information (continued)

(d)

(e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist:-

(i)

(ii)

(f) In the opinion of the directors:-

(i)

(ii)

Auditors

Sai Chin Hock See Wan Seng

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 17 April
2015.

The auditors, Ernst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which
will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to meet their obligations
when they fall due; and

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise
dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Group and of the Company which
would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the
end of the financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end
of the financial year.

no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect
substantially the results of the operations of the Group or of the Company for the
financial year in which this report is made.
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statement by directors
Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965

Sai Chin Hock See Wan Seng

Statutory declaration
Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965

Subscribed and solemnly declared
by the abovenamed See Wan Seng
at Melaka in the State of Melaka
on 17 April 2015 See Wan Seng

Before me,

ONG SAN KEE
Commissioner for Oaths

We, Sai Chin Hock and See Wan Seng, being two of the directors of Ornapaper Berhad, do
hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements set out
on pages 9 to 70 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in
Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2014 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended.

I, See Wan Seng, being the director primarily responsible for the financial management of
Ornapaper Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial
statements set out on pages 9 to 71 are in my opinion correct, and I make this solemn
declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the
Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

The information set out in Note 39 to the financial statements on page 71 have been prepared in
accordance with the Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and
Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 17 April
2015.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the financial statements

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

Auditors’ responsibility

We have audited the financial statements of Ornapaper Berhad, which comprise statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2014 of the Group and of the Company, and statements
of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the
Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 9 to 70.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as
to give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965
in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement,
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant
to the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Ornapaper Berhad (continued)

Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

Opinion

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2014 and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies
Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report
the following:

In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to
be kept by the Company and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been
consolidated with the financial statements of the Company are in form and content
appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us
for those purposes.

The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to
any qualification and did not include any comment required to be made under Section
174(3) of the Act.

We have considered the financial statements and the auditors’ reports of all the
subsidiaries of which we have not acted as auditors, which are indicated in Note 19 to the
financial statements, being financial statements that have been included in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Ornapaper Berhad (continued)

Other reporting responsibilities

Other matters

Ernst & Young Low Khung Leong
AF: 0039 2697/01/17(J)
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Melaka, Malaysia
Date: 17 April 2015

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

The supplementary information set out in Note 39 to the financial statements on page 71 is
disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the
financial statements. The directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary
information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised
and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
("MIA Guidance") and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the
supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA
Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2014

 Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Revenue 8 273,696 245,625 888 5,332
Cost of goods sold (222,371) (200,374) - -
Gross profit 51,325 45,251 888 5,332
Other items of income
Interest income 9 118 116 50 107
Other income 10 2,229 1,749 - -
Other items of expense
Administrative expenses (11,004) (9,969) (287) (204)
Selling and marketing expenses (19,778) (16,169) (9) (7)
Other expenses (6,770) (7,069) (162) (59)
Operating profit 16,120 13,909 480 5,169
Finance costs 11 (3,119) (3,371) - -
Profit before tax 12 13,001 10,538 480 5,169
Income tax expense 15 (3,222) (2,365) (32) (1,449)
Profit, net of tax, representing
 total comprehensive income
 for the year 9,779 8,173 448 3,720

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 9,643 8,032 448 3,720
Non-controlling interests 136 141 - -

9,779 8,173 448 3,720

Earnings per share attributable
 to owners of the parent (sen)
Basic 16 13.0 10.8
Diluted 16 13.0 10.8

form an integral part of the financial statements
The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information

       Group       Company
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573695-W

Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of financial position
As at 31 December 2014

 Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 17 103,805 101,980 - -
Land use rights 18 4,161 4,292 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 19 - - 94,158 94,158
Goodwill 20 1,633 1,633 - -
Deferred tax assets 27 1,147 1,673 - -

110,746 109,578 94,158 94,158

Current assets
Inventories 21 32,667 33,472 - -
Trade and other receivables 22 60,157 60,830 1,059 5
Other current assets 23 1,109 4,892 1 1
Tax recoverable 251 290 7 35
Cash and bank balances 24 9,940 10,044 1,529 2,130

104,124 109,528 2,596 2,171

Total assets 214,870 219,106 96,754 96,329

Equity and liabilities

Current liabilities
Borrowings 25 42,197 51,189 - -
Trade and other payables 26 26,236 30,205 13 36
Current tax payable 156 97 - -

68,589 81,491 13 36

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 25 5,251 7,734 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 27 8,081 6,643 - -
Non-current liabilities 13,332 14,377 - -

Total liabilities 81,921 95,868 13 36

       Group       Company

10



573695-W

Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of financial position
As at 31 December 2014 (continued)

 Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Equity attributable to owners
 of the parent
Share capital 28 75,251 75,251 75,251 75,251
Share premium 29 11,156 11,156 11,156 11,156
Treasury shares 30 (541) (541) (541) (541)
Retained earnings 31 46,117 36,474 10,875 10,427

131,983 122,340 96,741 96,293
Non-controlling interests 966 898 - -
Total equity 132,949 123,238 96,741 96,293

Total equity and liabilities      214,870      219,106        96,754        96,329

Net current assets 35,535 28,037 2,583 2,135

Net assets 132,949 123,238 96,741 96,293

       Group       Company

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information
form an integral part of the financial statements
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573695-W

Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Distributable Attributable Non-
Share Share Treasury Retained to owners of controlling Total

Note capital premium shares earnings the parent interests equity
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Group

Opening balance at 1 January 2014 75,251 11,156 (541) 36,474 122,340 898 123,238

Total comprehensive income - - - 9,643 9,643 136 9,779

Transaction with owners
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - (68) (68)

Closing balance at  31 December 2014 75,251 11,156 (541) 46,117 131,983 966 132,949

Opening balance at 1 January 2013 75,251 11,156 (489) 28,442 114,360 757 115,117

Total comprehensive income - - - 8,032 8,032 141 8,173

Transaction with owners
Purchase of treasury shares 30 - - (52) - (52) - (52)

Closing balance at  31 December 2013 75,251 11,156 (541) 36,474 122,340 898 123,238

        Non-distributable
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573695-W

Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Distributable
Share Share Treasury Retained Total

Note capital premium shares earnings equity
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Company

Opening balance at
1 January 2014 75,251 11,156 (541) 10,427 96,293

Total comprehensive income - - - 448 448

Closing balance at
31 December 2014 75,251 11,156 (541) 10,875 96,741

Opening balance at
1 January 2013 75,251 11,156 (489) 6,707 92,625

Total comprehensive income - - - 3,720 3,720

Transaction with owners
Purchase of treasury shares 30 - - (52) - (52)

Closing balance at
31 December 2013 75,251 11,156 (541) 10,427 96,293

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information
form an integral part of the financial statements

        Non-distributable
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573695-W

Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Operating activities
Profit before tax 13,001 10,538 480 5,169
Adjustments for:
Bad debts written off 235 669 - -
Depreciation and amortisation:
 -  Property, plant and equipment 11,495 9,815 - -
 -  Land use rights 131 130 - -
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (290) (176) - -

Property, plant and equipment
written off 1,029 1,530 - -

Reversal of allowance for impairment
loss on:

 - Trade receivables (752) (695) - -
 - Other receivables (11) - - -
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange - (64) - -
Interest expense 3,119 3,371 - -
Interest income (118) (116) (50) (107)
Total adjustments 14,838 14,464 (50) (107)
Operating cash flows before
changes in working capital 27,839 25,002 430 5,062

Changes in working capital
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 805 (10,878) - -
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 1,201 (6,111) (1,054) 4,963
Increase in other current assets (605) (3,253) - -
(Decrease)/increase in payables (3,969) 7,084 (23) 3
Total changes in working capital (2,568) (13,158) (1,077) 4,966
Cash flows from/(used in)
 operations 25,271 11,844 (647) 10,028

Interest paid (3,119) (3,371) - -
Interest received 118 116 50 107
Taxes paid (1,245) (1,017) (22) (1,333)
Taxes refunded 85 168 18 -
Net cash from/(used in) operating
 activities 21,110 7,740 (601) 8,802

         Group         Company
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573695-W

Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (11,782) (8,834) - -

Additional subscription in shares
in subsidiaries - - - (9,073)

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 4,867 223 - -

Increase in deposits with a licensed
bank (1,587) (1,711) (1,500) -

Net cash used in investing
 activities (8,502) (10,322) (1,500) (9,073)

Financing activities
Drawdown of term loans - 1,000 - -
Drawdown of finance lease payables 2,980 - - -
Repayment of term loans (5,843) (2,277) - -
Repayment of finance lease payables (2,704) (2,457) - -
Decrease in short-term borrowings (6,556) (6,188) - -
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (68) - - -
Purchase of treasury shares - (52) - (52)
Net cash used in financing
 activities (12,191) (9,974) - (52)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents 417 (12,556) (2,101) (323)

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January 3,806 16,362 2,130 2,453

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December (Note 24) 4,223 3,806 29 2,130

form an integral part of the financial statements
The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information

         Group         Company
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Corporate information

2. Basis of preparation

3. Basis of consolidation

-

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Ornapaper Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia,
and is listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The principal place of
business is situated at No. 8998, Kawasan Perindustrian Peringkat IV, Batu Berendam, 75350
Melaka, Malaysia.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of management
services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are manufacturing and sale of corrugated
boards and carton boxes. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these
principal activities during the financial year.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards ("MFRS") as issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board
("MASB"), International Financial Reporting Standards ("IRFS") as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

The financial statements have also been prepared on a historical basis, unless otherwise
indicated in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM") and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (RM'000) except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and
of its subsidiaries (collectively the "Group") as at 31 December 2014. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the
Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee);
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

3. Basis of consolidation (continued)

- The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

-

- The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

- Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

- Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;

- Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

- Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

- Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

- Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and

-

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation
of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the statement of
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income ("OCI") are attributed to the
equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or
loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

4. Summary of significant accounting policies

4.1 Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in
administrative expenses.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
that is a financial instrument and within the scope of MFRS 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised either in either profit or loss or as a change to OCI. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of MFRS 139, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate MFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-
measured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual
terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and
any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to
measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the re-assessment still
results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate
consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss.
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Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4.1 Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

4.2 Current versus non-current classification

-

-

-

-

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

-

-

-

-

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

Assets and liabilities in statements of financial position are presented based on
current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.
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4.3 Fair value measurement

- In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

-

Level 1 -

Level 2 -

Level 3 -

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest Level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available, are used to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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4.3 Fair value measurement (continued)

4.4 Foreign currencies

(a) Functional and presentation currency

(b) Transactions and balances

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and significant liabilities.
Involvement of external valuers is decided by senior management. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The senior management decides, after discussions with the external
valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

The Group’s financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia which is also
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entities at
the functional currency rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition.

At each reporting date, the senior management analyses the movements in the values of
assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed according to
the accounting policies of the Group. For this analysis, the senior management verifies
the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The senior management, in conjunction with the external valuers, also compares the
changes in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to
determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, classes of assets and liabilities are determined
based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
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4.4 Foreign currencies (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

(c) Group companies

4.5 Revenue recognition

The Group assess its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine
if the Group is acting as principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a
principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss with the exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the
hedge of the Group's net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

Any goodwill arising in the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into
euros at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements
of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are
recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment
is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duty.
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4.5 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a) Sale of goods

(b) Dividend income

(c) Management fees

(d) Interest income

(e) Rental income

Management fees are recognised when services are rendered.

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of
the goods. Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there are significant
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the
possible return of goods.

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest bearing
financial assets classified as available for sale, interest income or expense is
recorded using the effective interest rate ("EIR"), which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is included in finance
income in the profit or loss.

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. The
aggregate costs of incentives provided to lessees are recognised as a reduction of
rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
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4.6 Employee benefits

(i) Short term benefits

(ii) Defined contribution plans

4.7 Taxes

(a) Current income tax

(b) Deferred tax

-

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an
expense in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees.
Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are
recognised when services are rendered by employees that increase their
entitlement to future compensated absences. Short term non-accumulating
compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences
occur.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in
equity and not in the profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

The Group makes contributions to the Employees Provident Fund ("EPF") in
Malaysia, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined
contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related service is performed.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

24



573695-W

Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4.7 Taxes (continued)

(b) Deferred tax (continued)

-

-

-

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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4.7 Taxes (continued)

(b) Deferred tax (continued)

(c) Sales tax

(i)

(ii)

4.8 Borrowing costs

4.9 Leases

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception date. The arrangement is assessed for
whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is
not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax,
except when:

receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax
included.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the
criteria for separate recognition at that date, would be recognised subsequently if
new information about facts and circumstances changed. The adjustment would
either be treated as a reduction to goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill)
if it is incurred during the measurement period or in profit or loss.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the statements of financial position.

the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable;
and
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4.9 Leases (continued)

(a) Group as lessee

(b) Group as lessor

4.10 Property, plant and equipment

Finance leases that transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item to the Group, are capitalised at the commencement of
the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in
finance costs in profit or loss.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the
asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits
of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing
component parts of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group derecognises the replaced part, and recognises the new part with its
own associated useful life and depreciation. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if
the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
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4.10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold land 92 to 99 years
Factory buildings 47 to 99 years
Plant and machinery 5 to 20 years
Other assets 5 to 10 years

4.11 Land use rights

4.12 Investment in subsidiaries

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

4.13 Inventories

(a) Raw materials: purchase costs on a weighted average basis.

Land use rights are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, land use rights
are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The land use rights are amortised over their lease terms.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:

A subsidiary is an entity which the Group has all the following:

power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee);

exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and

the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for at cost less impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the
difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in profit
or loss.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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4.13 Inventories (continued)

(b)

4.14 Cash and short-term deposits

4.15 Impairment of non-financial assets

Finished goods and work-in-progress: Cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity but
excluding borrowing costs

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can
be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other
available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

Impairment calculation are based on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each CGU to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year.

Cash and short-term deposits in the statements of financial position comprise cash at
banks and on hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less. For
the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short-term deposits, net of any outstanding bank overdrafts.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made as to whether there is an indication that
an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s ("CGU") fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.
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4.15 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

4.16 Financial instruments

4.17 Financial assets

(a) Initial recognition and measurement

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

For assets other than goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to
determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no
longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset or CGU is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually at reporting date and when circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined by assessing
the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future
periods.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-
for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair
value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
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4.17 Financial assets (continued)

(b) Subsequent measurement

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(ii) Loans and receivables

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held
for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments
as defined by MFRS 139. There were no financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value presented as finance costs (negative net changes in fair value) or
finance income (positive net changes in fair value) in the statement of profit or
loss.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or
loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Re-assessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of the fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method, less impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in cost of sales or other operating expenses
for receivables.
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4.17 Financial assets (continued)

(b) Subsequent measurement (continued)

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments

(iv) Available-for-sale ("AFS") financial investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities are classified as held-to-maturity when there is a positive intention
and an ability to hold them to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-
maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the EIR, less
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance income in the statement of
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as finance costs. There were no held-to-maturity
investments during the reporting period.

AFS financial investments include equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as AFS are those that are neither classified as
held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and that may be sold in response to needs for liquidity
or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial investments are subsequently
measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income and credited in the AFS reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in other
operating income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative loss is reclassified from the AFS reserve to the statement of profit
or loss in finance costs. Interest earned whilst holding AFS financial
investments is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

The ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the near term are
evaluated whether they are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
these financial assets cannot be traded due to inactive markets, these
financial assets will  be reclassified if the management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for foreseeable future or until maturity.
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4.17 Financial assets (continued)

(b) Subsequent measurement (continued)

(iv) Available-for-sale ("AFS") financial investments (continued)

(c) Derecognition

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

-

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have been transferred or an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party has been assumed under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset have been transferred or (b)
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset have neither been
transferred nor retained but control of the asset has been transferred.

For a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category, the fair value carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on the asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the
EIR. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount
is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

When the rights to receive cash flows from an asset have been transferred or when
a pass-through arrangement has been entered into, the Group evaluates if, and the
extent of, the risks and rewards of ownership that have been retained. When
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset have not been transferred nor
retained, the transferred asset continues to be recognised to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, an associated liability is also
recognised. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations retained.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the
statements of financial position) when:
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4.17 Financial assets (continued)

(d) Impairment of financial assets

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

At each reporting date, an assessment is made as to whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an assessment is made as to
whether impairment exists individually (for financial assets that are individually
significant) or collectively (for financial assets that are not individually
significant). If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the
asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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4.17 Financial assets (continued)

(d) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

(ii) Available-for-sale ("AFS") investments

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the loss is recognised in statement of profit or loss. Interest
income (recorded as finance income in the statement of profit or loss)
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans together with the associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group. If, in a
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, the impairment is assessed
based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

For AFS financial investments, an assessment is made at each reporting date
whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment
below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. When there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss (measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss) is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4.17 Financial assets (continued)

(d) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii) Available-for-sale ("AFS") investments (continued)

4.18 Financial liabilities

(a) Initial recognition and measurement

(b) Subsequent measurement

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by MFRS
139. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset, using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of finance income. If, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a
debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:
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4.18 Financial liabilities (continued)

(b) Subsequent measurement (continued)

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

(ii) Loans and borrowings

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

(c) Financial guarantee contracts

(d) Derecognition

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require
a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in MFRS 139 are satisfied. No financial liability has been designated at
fair value through profit or loss during the reporting period.
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4.18 Financial liabilities (continued)

(e) Offsetting of financial instruments

4.19 Provisions

4.20 Share capital and share issuance expenses

4.21 Treasury shares

4.22 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity
holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer
at the discretion of the Company. A distribution is authorised when it is approved by the
shareholders and a corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and
deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of such equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised in share premium.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group and of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity
instruments and are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable
incremental transaction costs.

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When it is expected that some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statements of profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.
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4.22

4.23 Contingencies

4.24 Segment reporting

5. Changes in accounting policies

Amendments to MFRS 132: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 127: Investment Entities

Amendments to MFRS 139: Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
IC Interpretation 21: Levies

Segment information is not disclosed as the Group operates solely in Malaysia and is
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of one product line, that is, corrugated
boards and carton boxes.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the
liability and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statements of financial position
of the Group.

The Group and the Company adopted the following new and amended MFRSs and IC
Interpretation which are effective for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

Amendments to MFRS 136: Recoverable Amount Disclosures Investment Entities
  for Non-Financial Assets

A contingent liability or asset is a possible obligation or asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
uncertain future event(s) not wholly within the control of the Group.

Adoption of the above standards and interpretation did not have any effect on the financial
performance or position of the Group.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with
fair value re-measurement recognised directly in equity.

Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent (continued)
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6. Standards issued but not yet effective

Effective for annual periods
Description beginning on or after

1 July 2014
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2010–2012 Cycle 1 July 2014
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2011–2013 Cycle 1 July 2014

1 January 2016

1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 116 and 141 Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or Contribution of

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016
1 January 2016

1 January 2016
MFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
MFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2017

1 January 2018

MFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The following are standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective up to the
date of issuance of the Group’s financial statements. The Group and the Company intend to
adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

In November 2014, MASB issued the final version of MFRS 9 Financial Instruments which
reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces MFRS 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of MFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. MFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with
early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative information
is not compulsory. The adoption of MFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but no impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial liabilities.

The directors expect that the adoption of the above standards and interpretations will have no
material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application except as
disclosed below:

 Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to MFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of
 Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to MFRS 127: Equity Method in Separate Financial
 Statements
Amendments to MFRS 101: Disclosure Initiatives
Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 128: Investment
  Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

MFRS 9: Financial Instruments

Amendments to MFRS 119: Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
 Contributions

Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012–2014 Cycle
Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 138: Clarification of
 Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
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7. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

7.1 Judgements made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has not made
any critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which significantly affect
the amounts recognised in these financial statements.

The preparation of the Group's and the Company's financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in future periods.

MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

MFRS 15 establishes a new five-step models that will apply to revenue arising from contracts
with customers. MFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
MFR 118 Revenue, MFRS 111 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of MFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue which depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Under MFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017 with early adoption permitted. The Directors anticipate that the application
of MFRS 15 will have impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
and the Company’s financial statements. The Group is currently assessing the impact of MFRS
15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date.
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7. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

7.2 Estimates and assumptions

(a) Impairment of goodwill

(b) Impairment of loans and receivables

(c) Taxes

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. Assumptions and estimates are based on parameters available
when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times which such indicators
exist. This required an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill is allocated.

When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate future
cash flows from the cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present values of those cash flows. Further details of the
carrying value, the key assumptions applied in the impairment assessment and
sensitivity analysis to changes in the assumptions are disclosed in Note 20.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations,
changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income.
Differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future
changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income
and expense already recorded.

The impairment loss on trade receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and ageing analysis of the receivables and on management's
judgment. A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current credit-worthiness and
the past collection history on each receivables. If the financial conditions of the
receivables of the Group were to deteriorate, additional provision may be required.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future
cash flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics. The carrying amount of the Group’s loans and
receivables at the reporting date is disclosed in Note 22.
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7. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

7.2 Estimates and assumptions (continued)

(c) Taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unutilised tax losses and unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses and credits can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

The carrying amount of recognised tax losses and tax credits of the Group is
disclosed in Note 27.

The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities. The amount of such provisions is
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing
interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax
authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues
depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective Group and its subsidiaries
domicile. As the Group assesses the probability for litigation and subsequent cash
outflow with respect to taxes as remote, no contingent liability has been recognised.
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8. Revenue

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Sales of goods 273,696 245,625 - -
Dividend income from subsidiaries - - 774 5,227
Management fees from subsidiaries - - 114 105

273,696 245,625 888 5,332

9. Interest income

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Interest income from:
Loans and receivables 118 116 50 107

10. Other income

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Bad debts recovered 580 196
Disposal of scrap materials 313 171
Realised gain on foreign exchange 70 107
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange - 64
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 290 176
Rental from operating leases 196 219
Reversal of allowance for impairment loss on:
- trade receivables (Note 22(a)) 752 695
- other receivables (Note 22(b)) 11 -
Miscellaneous 17 121

2,229 1,749

11. Finance costs

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Interest expense on:
- Bank loans and overdrafts 2,682 3,100
- Obligations under finance leases 437 271

3,119 3,371

      Group     Company

      Group

      Group     Company

Group
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12. Profit before tax

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Auditors’ remuneration

   Current year 156 149 38 35
   Underprovision in prior year 4 - - -

   the Company 17 25 12 20
Bad debts written off 235 669 - -
Carriage inwards and outwards 15,042 13,038 - -
Depreciation and amortisation:

11,495 9,815 - -
131 130 - -

Employee  benefits expense (Note 13) 26,092 23,057 9 9
Non-executive directors' remuneration
 (Note 14) 153 153 153 105
Operating lease:

402 624 - -
Property, plant and equipment written off 1,029 1,530 - -

13. Employee benefits expense

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Wages and salaries 22,438 19,896 9 9
Contributions to defined contribution
  plans 2,035 1,758 - -
Social security contributions 206 193 - -
Other benefits 1,413 1,210 - -

26,092 23,057 9 9

- Minimum lease payments on land and
    buildings

Included in employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company are executive
directors’ remuneration amounting to RM2,508,000 and RM9,000 (2013: RM2,127,000 and
RM9,000) respectively as further disclosed in Note 14.

    Company      Group

- Statutory audit

- Other services provided by auditors of

- Property, plant and equipment (Note 17)
- Land use rights (Note 18)

    Company      Group

The following amounts have been charged in arriving at profit before tax:
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14. Directors' remuneration

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Executive directors
Directors of the Company:

- Fees 292 282 - -
- Salaries and other emoluments 1,563 1,265 9 9
- Defined contribution plans 97 88 - -

1,952 1,635 9 9
Other directors of subsidiaries:

- Salaries and other emoluments 495 438 - -
- Defined contribution plans 61 54 - -

556 492 - -
Total executive directors' remuneration
 (Note 13) 2,508 2,127 9 9

Non-executive directors (Note 12)
Directors of the Company:

- Fees 144 144 144 96
- Other emoluments 9 9 9 9

153 153 153 105

Total directors' remuneration 2,661 2,280 162 114

2014 2013
Executive directors
RM200,001 to RM250,000 1 1
RM350,001 to RM400,000 - -
RM450,001 to RM500,000 - -
RM500,001 to RM550,000 - -
RM550,001 to RM600,000 - 1
RM600,001 to RM650,000 - -
RM650,001 to RM700,000 - -
RM700,001 to RM750,000 - -
RM750,001 to RM800,000 - -
RM800,001 to RM850,000 - 1
RM850,001 to RM900,000 2 -

Non-executive directors
RM50,001 to RM100,000 3 3

The number of directors of the Company who held office during the financial year, whose total
annual remuneration received from the Group that fell within the following bands is analysed
below:

      Group     Company
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15. Income tax expense

Major components of income tax expense

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Statements of comprehensive income

Current income tax:
- Malaysian income tax 1,249 992 32 1,307
- Underprovision in prior years 9 132 - 142

1,258 1,124 32 1,449
Deferred tax (Note 27):
- Origination and reversal of
    temporary differences 1,979 1,758 - -
- Overprovision in prior years (15) (517) - -

1,964 1,241 - -
Income tax expense recognised
 in profit or loss 3,222 2,365 32 1,449

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting profit

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Profit before tax 13,001 10,538 480 5,169

Taxation at 25% (2013: 25%) 3,250 2,635 120 1,292
Tax effect of:
- Non-deductible expenses 417 608 105 15
- Non-taxable income (142) (100) (193) -
Balancing charge arising from control
 transfer disposal of property,
 plant and equipment not subject to tax (297) - - -
Deferred tax asset recognised on:
- Unabsorbed capital allowances - (16) - -
- Unutilised tax losses - (377) - -
Under/(over) provision in prior years:
- Income tax 9 132 - 142
- Deferred tax (15) (517) - -
Income tax expense recognised
 in profit or loss 3,222 2,365 32 1,449

    Company      Group

    Company

The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the
applicable corporate tax rate for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 is as follows:

      Group
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2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Unutilised tax losses 2,144 2,144
Unabsorbed capital allowances 1,188 2,980
Unabsorbed reinvestment allowances 5,396 9,664

8,728 14,788

16. Earnings per share

2014 2013

Profit, net of tax, attributable to owners of the parent (RM'000) 9,643 8,032

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue ('000)* 74,153 74,215

Basic earnings per share (sen) 13.0 10.8

Diluted earnings per share (sen) 13.0 10.8

* The weighted average number of ordinary shares takes into account the weighted
average effect of changes in treasury shares transactions during the year.

Domestic current income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%) of the
estimated assessable profit for the financial year. The Malaysian corporate income tax rate is
expected to reduce from 25% to 24% with effect from year of assessment 2016 as announced
in the 2014 Budget. The reduction in income tax rate has no significant impact to the Group
and the Company.

There are no income tax consequences attached to the payment of dividends in either 2014 or
2013 by the Group to its shareholders.

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares
between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

      Group

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit, net of tax, attributable
to owners of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year, excluding treasury shares held by the Company.

The following amounts are available for offset against future taxable income:

Diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per share as there are no
dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

      Group
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Leasehold Factory Plant and  Other
land  buildings machinery assets Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Group

Cost
At 1 January 2013 11,768 42,656 113,591 8,475 176,490
Additions - 1,128 9,223 1,184 11,535
Disposals - - (1,508) (306) (1,814)
Written off - - (6,872) (18) (6,890)
Reclassification (226) 226 - - -
At 31 December 2013 /
 1 January 2014 11,542 44,010 114,434 9,335 179,321
Additions - 870 14,166 3,890 18,926
Disposals (2,583) (2,919) (363) (736) (6,601)
Written off - - (6,215) (415) (6,630)
At 31 December 2014 8,959 41,961 122,022 12,074 185,016

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2013 1,753 12,049 55,133 5,718 74,653
Charge for the year (Note 12) 128 1,121 7,640 926 9,815
Disposals - - (1,486) (281) (1,767)
Written off - - (5,344) (16) (5,360)
At 31 December 2013 /
 1 January 2014 1,881 13,170 55,943 6,347 77,341
Charge for the year (Note 12) 128 1,154 9,304 909 11,495
Disposals (508) (560) (268) (688) (2,024)
Written off - - (5,351) (250) (5,601)
At 31 December 2014 1,501 13,764 59,628 6,318 81,211

Carrying amounts

At 31 December 2013 9,661 30,840 58,491 2,988 101,980

At 31 December 2014 7,458 28,197 62,394 5,756 103,805

(a)

(b)

The leasehold land and factory buildings and certain plant and machinery are pledged to
secure bank borrowings as disclosed in Note 25.

Other assets comprise motor vehicles, office equipment, furniture, fittings and office
renovation.
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(c)

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Cash     11,782         8,834
Advanced payment to suppliers in prior year       4,388 -
Obligations under finance leases       2,756         2,701

    18,926       11,535

(d)

18. Land use rights

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Cost
At 1 January / 31 December 5,535 5,535

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 1,243 1,113
Amortisation (Note 12) 131 130
At 31 December 1,374 1,243

Carrying amount 4,161 4,292

Amount to be amortised: 130 130
- Not later than one year 522 522
- Later than one year but not later than 5 years 3,509 3,640
- Later than 5 years 4,161 4,292

The above properties are pledged to secure bank borrowings as referred to in Note 25.

     Group

The carrying amounts of motor vehicles, plant and machinery held under finance leases
at the reporting date were RM14,264,000 (2013: RM9,273,000).

Property, plant and equipment purchased by the Group during the financial year were by
means of:
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19. Investment in subsidiaries

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Unquoted shares at cost 94,158 94,158

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities
2014 2013

Ornapaper Industry Manufacturing and sale of 100% 100%
 (M) Sdn. Bhd.  corrugated boards and carton boxes

Ornapaper Industry Manufacturing and sale of 100% 100%
 (Batu Pahat) Sdn. Bhd. corrugated boards and carton boxes

Ornapaper Industry Manufacturing and sale of 100% 100%
 (Perak) Sdn. Bhd.  corrugated boards and carton boxes

Quantum Rhythm Sdn. Manufacturing of paper based 100% 100%
 Bhd. #  stationery products and trading in

 corrugated carton boxes

Tripack Packaging Manufacturing and sale of carton 100% 100%
 (M) Sdn. Bhd. #  boxes

Ornapaper Industry Manufacturing and sale of carton 80% 80%
 (Johor) Sdn. Bhd. #  boxes

# Not audited by Ernst & Young

(a) Subscription of additional shares in subsidiaries

In the previous financial year, the Company subscribed for additional 3,073,000,
3,500,000 and 2,500,000 new ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in Ornapaper Industry (M)
Sdn Bhd, Ornapaper Industry (Batu Pahat) Sdn. Bhd. and Quantum Rhythm Sdn. Bhd. for
a cash consideration of RM3,073,000, RM3,500,000 and RM2,500,000 respectively. The
proportion of ownership interest in the subsidiaries held by the Company remained
unchanged.

 ownership interest

          Company

Details of the subsidiaries, which are all incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:

 Proportion of
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(b) Material partly-owned subsidiary

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

20% 20%
Carrying amount of NCI 966 898
Profit allocated to NCI 136 141

As at 31 December
Non-current assets 4,472 4,795
Current assets 10,193 8,758
Non-current liabilities (994) (1,406)
Current liabilities (8,844) (7,660)
Net assets 4,827 4,487

Year ended 31 December

Revenue 30,238 25,942
Profit for the year 679 705

Summarised cash flow information
Cash inflows from operating activities 1,814 517
Cash outflows from investing activities (430) (692)
Cash outflows from financing activities (673) (252)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 711 (427)

20. Goodwill

Impairment tests for goodwill

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Ornapaper Industry (Perak) Sdn. Bhd. ("OIP") 1,574 1,574
Ornapaper Industry (Johor) Sdn. Bhd. ("OIJ") 59 59

1,633 1,633

Goodwill arising from business combinations has been allocated to two individual CGUs
identified according to the subsidiaries for impairment testing, the carrying amount of which are
as follows:

         Group

Financial information of a subsidiary, Ornapaper Industry (Johor) Sdn. Bhd., which has
material non-controlling interest ("NCI"), is set out as follows:

NCI percentage of ownership interest and voting
 interest

Summarised financial information before intra group
 elimination
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20. Goodwill (continued)

2014 2013 2014 2013

Budgeted gross margins 24% 23% 16% 19%
Growth rate 3% 3% 5% 5%
Pre-tax discount rate 9% 7% 9% 7%

Market share assumptions  – These assumptions are important because, as well as using
industry data for growth rates (as noted above), management assesses how the CGU’s
position, relative to its competitors, might change over the budget period. Management
expects the Group’s share of the electronics and related market on which the Group's products
are dependent upon, to be stable over the budget period.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions  – With regard to the assessment of value-in-use of
CGUs, the management believes that no reasonable change in any of the above key
assumptions would cause the carrying value of the CGUs to materially exceed their
recoverable amounts.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations using
cash flow projections of financial budgets approved by management covering a 5 year period.
The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections and the forecast growth rates
used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the five-year period are as follows:

              OIP

The calculations of value in use for the CGUs are most sensitive to the following assumptions:

Pre-tax discount rates  – Discount rates reflect the current market assessment of the risks
specific to each CGU. This is the benchmark used by management to assess operating
performance and to evaluate future investment proposals. In determining the appropriate
discount rates for each CGU, regard has been given to the yield on a 10 year government
bond at the beginning of the budgeted year.

Growth rates  - The forecast growth rates are based on published industry research and do not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the industries relevant to the CGUs.

Budgeted gross margins  - Gross margins are based on average values achieved in the 3
years preceding the start of the budget period. These are increased over the budget period for
anticipated efficiency improvements.

         OIJ

53



573695-W

Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

21. Inventories

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

At cost:
Raw materials and consumables 26,304 28,033
Work-in-progress 755 124
Finished goods 5,608 5,315

32,667 33,472

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 172,334 163,814

22. Trade and other receivables

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Trade receivables
Third parties 57,661 61,708 - -
Allowance for impairment (1,390) (2,142) - -
Trade receivables, net 56,271 59,566 - -

Other receivables
Third parties 4,417 1,795 - -
Subsidiaries
- interest bearing at 3% per annum - - 1,057 2

Sundry deposits 194 205 2 3
4,611 2,000 1,059 5

Allowance for impairment
 - Third parties (725) (736) - -
Other receivables, net 3,886 1,264 1,059 5

Total trade and other receivables 60,157 60,830 1,059 5

Total trade and other receivables 60,157 60,830 1,059 5
Add: Cash and bank balances
 (Note 24) 9,940 10,044 1,529 2,130
Total loans and receivables 70,097 70,874 2,588 2,135

(a) Trade receivables

         Group

         Group          Company

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 120 (2013: 30 to
120) days terms. They are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent
their fair values on initial recognition.
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22. Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a) Trade receivables (continued)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables is as follows:

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Neither past due nor impaired 42,415 42,916
1 to 30 days past due not impaired 8,428 11,319
31 to 60 days past due not impaired 2,846 3,206
More than 61 days past due not impaired 2,582 2,125
Total past due not impaired         13,856         16,650
Impaired           1,390           2,142

        57,661         61,708

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

Receivables that are impaired

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Individually impaired
Trade receivables - nominal amounts 1,390 2,142
Less: Allowance for impairment (1,390) (2,142)

- -

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired are active accounts which the
management considers to be recoverable. These receivables are not secured by any
collateral or credit enhancements.

Trade receivables that are individually impaired and the movement of the allowance
accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

Trade receivables that are determined to be individually impaired relate to those debtors
that are in significant financial difficulties and/or have defaulted on payments. These
receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.

         Group

         Group

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with
good payment records with the Group. None of these trade receivables have been
renegotiated during the financial year.
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(a) Trade receivables (continued)

Receivables that are impaired (continued)

Movement in allowance accounts:

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

At 1 January 2,142 3,344
Reversal of impairment losses (Note 10) (752) (695)
Bad debts written off - (507)
At 31 December 1,390 2,142

(b) Other receivables

Subsidiaries

Other receivables that are impaired

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Individually impaired
Other receivables - nominal amounts 725 755
Less: Allowance for impairment (725) (736)

- 19
Movement in allowance accounts:

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

At 1 January 736 736
Reversal of impairment losses (Note 10) (11) -
At 31 December 725 736

Other receivables that are individually impaired and the movement of the allowance
accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

Other information on financial risks of trade and other receivable are disclosed in Note 36.

         Group

         Group

Other receivables that are individually determined to be impaired relate to debtors that
have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit
enhancements.

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and repayable on demand. Further details
on related party transactions are disclosed in Note 32.

         Group
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23. Other current assets

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Advance payments to suppliers of
 property, plant and equipment 252 4,388 - -
Prepayments 857 504 1 1

1,109 4,892 1 1

24. Cash and bank balances

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Statements of financial position:
Cash on hand and at banks 5,787 7,478 29 2,130
Deposits with licensed banks 4,153 2,566 1,500 -
Cash and bank balances 9,940 10,044 1,529 2,130

Statements of cash flows:
Cash and bank balances 5,787 7,478 29 2,130
Bank overdrafts (Note 25) (1,564) (3,672) - -
Cash and cash equivalents 4,223 3,806 29 2,130

         Group          Company

         Group          Company

Deposits with a licensed bank are pledged as securities for borrowings as referred to in Note
25.

Other information on financial risk of cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in Note 36.

These deposits have an average maturity for period of 12 (2013: 12) months The weighted
average effective interest rate at the reporting date was 2.9% (2013: 3.6%) per annum.
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25. Borrowings

2014 2013
Maturity RM'000 RM'000

Current
Secured:
Bank overdrafts (Note 24) On demand 1,564 3,672
Bankers' acceptances 2015 37,332 40,730
Trust receipts 2015 53 3,211
Term loans 2015 664 2,486
Finance lease payables (Note 33(b)) 2015 2,584 1,090

42,197 51,189
Non-current
Secured:
Term loans 2016 to 2017 1,027 5,048
Finance lease payables (Note 33(b)) 2016 to 2018 4,224 2,686

5,251 7,734

Total borrowings 47,448 58,923

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

On demand or within one year 42,197 51,189
Later than one year and not later than 2 years 3,000 3,734
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 2,251 4,000

47,448 58,923

(a) Bank overdrafts

(b) Bankers' acceptances and trust receipts

(c) Term loans

The loans are repayable over a period of 5 years. The weighted average effective interest
rate is 6.10% to 8.10% (2013: 6.06% to 8.25%) per annum.

         Group

         Group

The remaining maturities of the borrowings as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Bank overdrafts are denominated in RM, bear interest on an average of 7.79% (2013:
7.98%) per annum.

These are used to finance purchases of the Group denominated in RM and are short term
in nature. The weighted average effective interest rate is 3.04% to 4.65% (2013: 3.50% to
7.85%) per annum.
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25. Borrowings (continued)

(d) Obligations under finance leases

26. Trade and other payables

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Trade payables
Third parties 17,367 23,292 - -

Other payables
Accrued operating expenses 5,181 4,131 13 35
Other payables 3,688 2,782 - 1

8,869 6,913 13 36
Total trade and other payables 26,236 30,205 13 36

Total trade and other payables 26,236 30,205 13 36
Add: Borrowings (Note 25) 47,448 58,923 - -
Total financial liabilities carried at
 amortised cost 73,684 89,128 13 36

(a) Trade payables

(b) Other payables

These obligations are secured by a charge over leased assets (Note 17(d)). The average
discount rate implicit in the leases is 4.94% (2013: 4.25%) per annum.

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 120 (2013: 30
to 120) days terms.

The borrowings are secured by the Group's leasehold land and factory buildings and certain
other assets and a debenture covering fixed and floating charges over all the assets and
properties as disclosed in Notes 17, 18 and 24. The borrowings are additionally guaranteed by
certain directors of the Company.

Other information on financial risk of borrowings are disclosed in Note 36.

         Group          Company

Other payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled on an average of 6 (2013: 6)
months.
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27. Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

At 1 January (4,970) (3,729)
Recognised in income statement (Note 15) (1,964) (1,241)
At 31 December (6,934) (4,970)

Reflected in the statements of financial position as follows:
- Deferred tax assets 1,147 1,673
- Deferred tax liabilities (8,081) (6,643)

(6,934) (4,970)

Deferred tax relates to the following:

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Property, plant and equipment (9,116) (8,667) (449) (10)
Unutilised tax losses 536 536 - 186
Unabsorbed capital allowances 297 745 (448) 3
Unabsorbed reinvestment
 allowances 1,349 2,416 (1,067) (1,413)
Others - - - (7)

(6,934) (4,970) (1,964) (1,241)

28. Share capital
Number of shares

2014 2013 2014 2013
'000 '000 RM'000 RM'000

Authorised
Shares of RM1 each 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of RM1 each 75,251 75,251 75,251 75,251

            Statements of
            financial position

         Group

  Statements of
comprehensive income

The holders of ordinary shares (except treasury shares) are entitled to receive dividends as
and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without
restrictions and rank equally with regard to the Company residual assets.

          Amount
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29. Share premium

30. Treasury shares

31. Retained earnings

32. Related party disclosures

(a) Sale and purchase of goods and services

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

With subsidiaries
Management fee charged to:
- Ornapaper Industry (M)
   Sdn. Bhd. - - 65 58
- Ornapaper Industry (Perak)
   Sdn. Bhd. - - 35 35

- Ornapaper Industry
   (Batu Pahat) Sdn. Bhd. - - 14 12

This non-distributable share premium arose from the issue of shares at a premium in previous
years.

Treasury shares relate to ordinary shares in the Company that are held by the Company. The
amount consists of the acquisition costs of treasury shares.

In 2013, the Company acquired 71,400 shares in the Company through purchases on the
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was RM52,291
and this was presented as a component within shareholders' equity. At the reporting date, the
Company held 1,098,445 (2013: 1,098,445) ordinary shares of RM1 each as treasury shares
in accordance with Section 67A of the Companies Act, 1965.

The directors of the Company are committed to enhancing the value of the Company for its
shareholders and believe that the repurchase plan can be applied in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The repurchase transactions were financed by internally
generated funds. The shares repurchased are being held as treasury shares.

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the following significant transactions between the Group and related parties
took place at terms agreed between the parties during the financial year:

          Company         Group

The Company may distributes dividends out of its retained earnings as at 31 December 2014
under the single tier system.
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32. Related party disclosures (continued)

(a) Sale and purchase of goods and services (continued)

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

With subsidiaries (continued)
Dividend received from:
- Ornapaper Industry
   (Johor) Sdn. Bhd. - - 271 -
- Tripack Packaging
   (M) Sdn. Bhd. - - 503 -
- Ornapaper Industry (M)
   Sdn. Bhd. - - - 2,727
- Ornapaper Industry (Perak)
   Sdn. Bhd. - - - 2,500

Interest received from:
- Ornapaper Industry (M)
   Sdn. Bhd. - - 27 -
- Quantum Rhythm Sdn. Bhd. - - 12 -

With other related parties
Purchases from:
- STH Wire Industry (M)
   Sdn. Bhd. 445 360 - -
Sales to:
- Perfect Food Manufacturing
   (M) Sdn. Bhd. 5,939 4,992 - -
- Greatbrand Food Industries
   Sdn. Bhd. 1,679 1,318 - -
- STH Wire Industry (M)
   Sdn. Bhd. 53 66 - -

Other related parties are companies in which a director of the Company, Sai Chin Hock,
has substantial financial interest.

The directors are of the opinion that the transactions above have been entered into in the
normal course of business and have been established on terms and conditions that are
not materially different from those obtainable in transaction with other parties.

         Group           Company
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32. Related party disclosures (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Salaries and wages 60 12
Defined contribution plans 6 2

66 14

33. Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Capital expenditure approved and contracted for:
- Property, plant and equipment 140 838

Capital expenditure approved but not contracted for:
- Property, plant and equipment 24 -

164 838

(b) Finance lease commitments

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Minimum lease payments:
Not later than one year 2,931 1,304
Later than one year and not later than 2 years 2,635 1,258
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 1,869 1,650
Total minimum lease payments 7,435 4,212
Less: Amounts representing future finance charges (627) (436)
Present value of minimum lease payments 6,808 3,776

In addition to the directors' remuneration as disclosed in Note 14, the salaries and other
related amounts payable to key management personnel are as follows:

         Group

         Group

The Company has finance leases for certain items of motor vehicles, plant and machinery
(Note 17). These leases do not have terms of renewal, but have purchase options at
nominal values at the end of the lease term.

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of
the net minimum lease payments are as follows:

         Group
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33. Commitments (continued)

(b) Finance lease commitments (continued)

2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000

Present value of finance lease payables:
Not later than one year 2,584 1,090
Later than one year and not later than 2 years 2,450 1,121
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 1,774 1,565
Present value of minimum lease payments 6,808 3,776
Less: Amount due within 12 months (Note 25) (2,584) (1,090)
Amount due after 12 months (Note 25) 4,224 2,686

34. Material litigation

35. Fair value of financial instruments

2014 2013 2014 2013
Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Trade and other
 receivables 22          60,157          60,830           1,059                  5
Cash and bank balances 24            9,940          10,044           1,529           2,130
Borrowings 25          47,448          58,923 - -
Trade and other
 payables 26          26,236          30,205                13                36

          Company

Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are
reasonable approximation of fair value

         Group

The following are classes of financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose
carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value:

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables and trade and other payables are
reasonable approximation of their fair values due to their relatively short maturity periods.

         Group

The carrying amounts of borrowings are reasonable approximation of their fair values as the
interest charge on these borrowings are pegged to, or close to, market interest rates near or at
reporting date.

There was no material litigation against the Group, except that the Court of Appeal had
ordered a wholly-owned subsidiary, Ornapaper Industry (M) Sdn. Bhd. to recognise the Paper
and Paper Products Manufacturing Employees Union in the previous financial year.
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36. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(a) Market risk

(b) Interest rate risk

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing borrowings. The
Group manages its interest rate exposure by maintaining a prudent mix of fixed and
floating rate borrowings and actively review its debt portfolio taking into account the
investment holding period and nature of its assets.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Based on the utilisation of floating rate loans and borrowings throughout the reporting
period, if interest rates had been 50 basis point lower (or higher), with all other variables
held constant, the Group's profit before tax would have been RM203,000 (2013:
RM276,000) higher (or lower), arising mainly as a result of lower (or higher) interest
expense that would have been incurred. The assumed movement in basis points for
interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment.

The information on maturity dates and effective interest rates of financial assets and
liabilities are disclosed in their respective notes.

Financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial
guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s
and the Company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. Financial
assets include trade and other receivables and cash and short-term deposits that derive
directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior
management oversees the management of these risks and ensures that the Group’s financial
risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives.
All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by senior management
who have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Group’s policy that no
trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Group do not apply
hedge accounting. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises interest rate risk
and foreign exchange currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include
deposits, loans and borrowings.
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36. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk

SGD USD Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

At 31 December 2014
Trade and other receivables 206 1,139 1,345
Trade and other payables (5) (468) (473)
Cash and bank balances 298 114 412

499 785 1,284

At 31 December 2013
Trade and other receivables 450 324              774
Trade and other payables - (266)             (266)
Cash and bank balances 212 97              309

              662              155              817

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk

(d) Credit risk

The hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's profit before tax to a 5% change in the USD
and SGD exchange rates at the reporting date against RM, assuming all other variables
remain unchanged, is insignificant.

 Net financial assets/(liabilities)
   held in non-functional currency

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to transactional currency risk primarily through sales and
purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional
currencies of the Group entities. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States Dollars ("USD") and Singapore Dollars ("SGD"). Such transactions are kept to an
acceptable level.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Exposure to credit risk relates
to operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments.

The net unhedged financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group companies that are
not denominated in their functional currencies are as follows:
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(d) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Trade receivables

Exposure to credit risk

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

At the reporting date, approximately 18% (2013: 13%) of the Group's gross trade
receivables were due from 5 (2013: 3) major customers.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis
and in addition, minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and
assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred
historical data. The Group does not hold collateral as security.

At the reporting date, the Group's and the Company's maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
recognised in the statements of financial position, with positive fair value and  a
nominal amount of RM41,035,000 (2013: RM54,677,000) relating to corporate
guarantees provided by the Company to financial institutions for credit facilities
utilised by subsidiaries.

Customer credit risk is managed according to established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed and approved by the directors who sets out the individual credit limits.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and financial standings of
major customers are continuously reviewed.

Information regarding trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired is disclosed in Note 22(a).

Information regarding financial assets that are past due but not impaired is disclosed
in Note 22(a).
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(d) Credit risk (continued)

(ii) Cash and short-term deposits

(e) Liquidity risk

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

On demand
or within One to
one year five years Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Group

Trade and other payables          26,236 -         26,236
Loans and borrowings          43,120           5,743         48,863
Total undiscounted financial liabilities          69,356           5,743         75,099

The maturity profile of the Group's and of the Company's financial liabilities at the
reporting date based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations is as follows:

Liquidity risk is the risk that difficulty will be encountered in meeting financial obligations
due to shortage of funds caused by mismatches of  maturities of financial assets and
liabilities. The objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, term loans, finance leases and collection
from customers.

Cash are normally maintained at minimum levels and surplus cash are placed as
short-term deposits with licensed banks and financial institutions. Such funds are
reviewed by the directors on a monthly basis and amounts placed as short-term
deposits may be revised throughout the year. This is to minimise the concentration of
risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential counterparty’s failure to
make payments. Deposits with banks that are neither past due nor impaired are
placed with or entered into with reputable financial institutions with no history of
default.

2014

Debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the availability of funding are managed so
as to ensure that refinancing, repayment and funding needs are met. As part of its overall
liquidity management, sufficient levels of cash or cash convertible investments are
maintained to meet its working capital requirements. In addition, available banking facilities
are maintained at a reasonable level to its overall debt position. As far as possible,
committed funding are raised from financial institutions and balances its portfolio with
some short term funding so as to achieve overall cost effectiveness.
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36. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (continued)

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities (continued)

On demand
or within One to
one year five years Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Company

Trade and other payables                 13 -                13
Total undiscounted financial liabilities                 13 -                                13

On demand
or within One to
one year five years Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Group

Trade and other payables          30,205 -         30,205
Loans and borrowings          52,223           8,318         60,541
Total undiscounted financial liabilities          82,428           8,318         90,746

Company

Trade and other payables                 36 -                36
Total undiscounted financial liabilities                 36 -                                36

37. Capital management

2014

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

2013

69



573695-W

Ornapaper Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

37. Capital management (continued)

Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Loans and borrowings 25 47,448 58,923 - -
Trade and other
 payables 26 26,236 30,205 13 36
Less: Cash and bank
 balances 24 (9,940) (10,044) (1,529) (2,130)
Net debt 63,744 79,084 - -

Equity attributable to
 owners of the parent 131,983 122,340 96,741 96,293

Capital and net debt 195,727 201,424 96,741 96,293

Gearing ratio 33% 39% - -

38. Authorisation of financial statements for issue

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on 17 April 2015.

         Company          Group

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus
net debt. The Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio within acceptable levels. The Group
includes within net debt, borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and bank balances.
Capital includes equity attributable to equity holders of the Group.
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39. Supplementary information – Breakdown of retained earnings into realised and unrealised

2014 2013 2014 2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Total retained earnings of the Company
  and its subsidiaries
- Realised profits        93,332 85,526 10,875 10,427
- Unrealised losses         (6,934) (4,970) - -

86,398 80,556 10,875 10,427
Less: Consolidation adjustments (40,281) (44,082) - -
Retained earnings as per financial
 statements        46,117 36,474 10,875 10,427

The breakdown of the retained earnings of the Group and of the Company into realised and
unrealised profits is presented in accordance with the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad dated 25 March 2010 and prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special
Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of
Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

      Group        Company
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